
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Board will be held on 
 

Wednesday 22 March 2023 
 

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 
 
 

 
Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services 

14 March 2023 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor A E D Barham 
Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor L A Canham 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor R A S Jones 

Councillor T A Maddison 
Councillor K Stealey 

Mr M Chughtai (Independent Member) 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 
AUDIT BOARD 

 
 AGENDA 

 
Wednesday 22 March 2023 

 
  
1. Apologies for Absence.   

  
2. Declarations of Interest.   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board 
or Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services. 
 

 

 
3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 

January 2023  
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

   
 

 
 
4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

 
5. References from Other Committees, if any.   

  
6. Internal Audit Update Report (March 2023)  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
7. Internal Audit Plan 2023/24  (Pages 19 - 28) 
 
8. Internal Audit Charter  (Pages 29 - 38) 
 
9. Strategic Risk Register Update - March 2023  (Pages 39 - 72) 
 
10. Dartford Borough Council - Code of Corporate Governance  (Pages 73 - 92) 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 
7.00 pm. 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor A E D Barham 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor K Stealey 
Mo Chughtai (Independent Member) 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor L A Canham 
Councillor R A S Jones 
Councillor T A Maddison 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin 

 
Tim Sams 
Jen Warrilow 
Mr. Paul Cuttle 
 
Alex Crowe 
 

– Chief Officer & Director of Corporate 
Services 

– Head of Finance 
– Internal Audit Manager 
– Grant Thornton UK (External 

Auditors) 
– Democratic Services Officer 

26. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Butler-Ruhle, 
Canham & Maddison. 
 
The Chairman gave a welcome to Mr Paul Cuttle from the Council’s external 
auditors Grant Thornton UK. He also noted the attendance of the Chief Officer 
and Director of Corporate Services, the Head of Finance, and the Internal 
Audit Manager. 
 

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

28. MEMBER TRAINING - ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



2

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

Members received a PowerPoint presentation from the Head of Finance on 
his role as Section 151 Officer.  
 
He informed Members that S151 of the Local Government Act 1972 required 
that every local authority “make arrangements for the proper administration of 
their financial affairs and secure that one of their officers has responsibility for 
the administration of those affairs” which included:  
 

 The Role of the Section 151 Officer and the Law 
 The Role of the Section 151 Officer – CIPFA & Chief Financial Officer 
 The Role of the Section 151 Officer –  Section 114 Notice 
 The Role of the Section 151 Officer – Examples from other Local 

Authorities 
 The Role of the Section 151 Officer – S114 Analysis of Reasons 
 The Role of the Section 151 Officer – S114 Lessons learnt 

 
The Head of Finance confirmed the following principal points in response to 
subsequent questions from Members: 
 

 Members were made aware of previous occurrences from other Local 
Authorities where Section 114 notices were delivered by the Section 
151 Officer. It was noted that there could be a number of reasons to 
why these notices are issued however on most of the occasions these 
problems arose due to poor leadership and/or poor management of 
finances; 

 Part of the issues arising from other Local Authorities included 
borrowing money to invest in high risk schemes such as energy and 
property management and these schemes subsequently failing; 

 It was confirmed that the Council’s investments were in diversified 
pooled funds or money market funds. The Council’s investments are 
low and are financed via the Council’s reserves or working capital, not 
by borrowing. Further details including risk management are to be set 
out in the Annual Budget Report. The Treasury Management Panel 
provide oversight on the Council’s investments.  

 The level of reserves held is specific to the risks and needs of each 
authority DBC reserves are currently above any notional level 
recommended, however it is important to not be complacent; 

 Policies are in place for whistleblowing if other staff/members feel the 
Section 151 Officer is being negligent in their role. 

 
In summary, Members noted the importance for a council to have strong 
financial leadership and a proactive audit committee independent of the 
cabinet function. Setting a clear medium term financial plan with an adequate 
reserve fund was important for local authorities, underpinned by regular 
monitoring in the medium and long term. 
 
The Independent Board Member endorsed those principals and expressed his 
view that the Council’s finances appeared to be well managed by Officers and 
subjected to due diligence by the Chairman and the Audit Board. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Finance for his 151 Officer presentation 
and responding to Members’ questions. 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 25 JANUARY 2023 
 

3

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

 
 
 

29. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 
OCTOBER 2022  
 
RESOLVED:  
 

That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 19 October 2022 be 
confirmed as an accurate record of those proceedings. 

 
30. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to 
consider. 
 

31. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES, IF ANY.  
 
None. 
 

32. REPORT FROM EXTERNAL AUDITOR  
 
The covering report from the Head of Finance enclosed at Appendix A for 
noting by the Board, the External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK’s 2021/22 
Annual Report on Dartford Borough Council, together with an update of the 
Statement of Accounts, which included the findings of the work on the 
Councils value for money (VfM) arrangements.  
 
Mr. Paul Cuttle (Grant Thornton UK) advised the Board that in overall terms 
his report was positive, considering the challenging environment the Council 
faced, and that Dartford was well placed compared to other local authorities in 
Kent, given its £98M in reserves. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Cuttle for his report. He and other members noted 
their apprehension in the recommendation that the Cabinet Portfolio Holder 
for Finance does not attend future meetings of the Board in an Observer 
capacity, to ensure a clear perception that the Board operated its scrutiny 
function independent of any Cabinet influence. He regarded the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance as a highly qualified and proven financial expert with active 
commercial expertise, who provided invaluable support to the Board, and 
advised that he would continue to be invited by the Chairman to attend Board 
proceedings in an Observer capacity.  
 
Mr Cuttle acknowledged and respected the Chairman’s comments, and 
emphasised that the recommendation was not a reflection on the abilities or 
impartiality of the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance, but standard CIPFA 
guidance to ensure separation between the Board and Cabinet. To his 
knowledge, no other authority in Kent invited their Cabinet Member for 
Finance to participate in their Audit Committee/Board proceedings. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



4

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

The Portfolio Holder for Finance expressed his understanding for the External 
Auditors recommendations and emphasised that he did not want to 
embarrass the Council in any way with his attendance. He saw his role as one 
of seeking clarification on the Board’s work and decisions and offering advice 
based on his financial experience and expertise. 
 
The Independent Member expressed his thoughts in regards to this matter. 
He understood from the External Auditors perspective how it may look from 
an outsiders point of view, however he felt the expertise brought by the 
Portfolio Holder for Finance had an overall positive impact to the Council and 
would be happy to continue with the current arrangements. 
 
It was also noted in the Report that the Leader of the Council attended the 
Scrutiny Committee, this however would be discussed separately at the 
relevant meeting. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members noted the External Auditor’s Annual Report 
2021/22, on Dartford Borough Council, at Appendix A to the 
report. 
 

2. That Members noted the completion and publishing of the 
2021/22 Statement of Accounts 

 
33. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE JANUARY 2023  

 
The covering report from the Internal Audit Manager (IAM), attached at 
Appendix A for Members to note, the January 2023 update report on Internal 
Audit outcomes and activity since the last report to the Board in October 2022, 
together with information to facilitate Members’ oversight of the Internal Audit 
function.  
 
The IAM advised Members that her team continued to carry three vacancies, 
in addition to having Officers on long-term sick leave. It was hoped that these 
roles would be filled before the next Audit Board meeting in March 2023, and 
that once her team was fully staffed, outstanding audits would be undertaken 
and the Audit Plan positively impacted.  
A Member queried the reason for the failure to recruit previously.  It was 
confirmed that due to a shortage of qualified auditors nationally and not 
previously offering a competitive salary it was increasingly difficult to recruit. 
Since the original recruitment process, the IA team had undergone a re-
structure, with one post being changed from an Auditor to a Trainee Auditor. 
By introducing the trainee role and adjusting the pay scales offered, the roles 
had a much improved response, including 131 applicants for the Trainee 
Auditor role.  
 
The Chairman asked that the standard Selective Invoice Check report be re-
instated in the agenda, once the Support Officer had been appointed. 
 
The IAM advised that the operating system for checking invoices will be 
changed to a more sophisticated process, and that a new report would be 
produced and added to the Board agenda going forward once implemented. 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 25 JANUARY 2023 
 

5

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

 
A member queried if the IAM would have enough sufficient time to present her 
IA opinion by the July 2023 meeting with the current staff shortages and 
recruitment. The IAM confirmed that the team will continue to outsource some 
medium level audit work to alleviate its workload, and that it was hoped to hire 
a temporary member of staff in the interim. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That Members note the Internal Audit Update Report and updates (attached 
as Appendix A to the report); 
 

34. ROLE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT BOARD - SELF-
ASSESSMENT  
 
The covering report from the Internal Audit Manager (IAM) enclosed at 
Appendix A for Members’ review and agreement, a draft Self-Assessment 
document of the effectiveness of the Audit’s Board’s work in the 2022/23 fiscal 
year, based upon CIPFA’s Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police, 2018 Edition report.  
 
Members were asked to review the draft Self-assessment 2022/23, at 
Appendix A to the report and agree that an action plan along with a training 
plan be presented to a future meeting of the Board, upon completion of self-
assessment skills and knowledge questionnaires by Board Members.  
 
The Chairman noted the negative answer to question 19 in Appendix A - ‘Has 
the committee [Board] obtained feedback on its performance from those 
interacting with the committee or relying on its work.’ 
 
The IAM advised that the ‘no’ response to question 19 referred to whether the 
Audit Board had received feedback from the General Assembly of the Council 
as to the efficiency of its work. As feedback had not been specifically sought 
from the GAC in the first annual report to Council on the Board’s work, a ‘no’ 
answer was appropriate. However, including a specific request in the next 
annual report to the GAC could secure a positive ‘yes’ answer.  
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance as an observer expressed on behalf 
of the Cabinet that the Chairman and the Board continued to undertake good 
and effective work on behalf of the Council.  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the Board reviews the draft Self-assessment 2022/23, at 

Appendix A to the report be agreed;  
 
2. That an action plan along with a training plan be presented to a future 

meeting of the Board, upon completion of self-assessment skills and 
knowledge questionnaires by Board Members; 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



6

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

 
3. That future annual reports to the GAC on the Board’s work seek formal 

endorsement of the effectiveness of the Board’s role and undertakings.  
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.08 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor D A Hammock 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 March 2023 

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (March 2023) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on Internal 

Audit outcomes and activity since the last report in January 2023.  It also 
presents information to facilitate Members’ oversight of the Internal Audit 
function.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Update Report and updates (attached as 

Appendix A to the report) 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service. 

3.2 The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
Partnership. Principally the focus of these updates is around the 
outcomes from internal audit work, progress against the audit plan and 
implementation of audit actions.   

3.3 The report also provides quality and performance information to allow 
Members oversight of the Internal Audit Service.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 Not directly applicable although all Internal Audit work is designed to 
support the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 
Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 

the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the 
Audit Plan is already approved within the 
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding. 

Legal Implications Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, the Council must ensure an effective 
system of Internal Audit.  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

There are no direct climate change implications 
associated with this report. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 6



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 March 2023 

Staffing Implications Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this report.  

Risk Assessment The audit plan is risk-based. As such, the 
projects outlined in the plan have been 
prioritised based on the outcomes of each risk 
assessment.  

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (March 2023) 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref Report Author Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
None 
 

 
 

   

Page 8Agenda Item 6



1 

 
Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 
Report 

 
22 March 2023 

  

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



2 

Introduction 
 
1. Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting function. The 

shared team undertake reviews over the course of the year that are designed to evaluate 
and improve the Council’s internal control, governance and risk management processes. 
Each individual review contributes towards the Chief Audit Executive’s overall opinion on 
systems of risk management, governance and control provided at the end of the year.  

2. This report provides Members with an update on internal audit activity, and, most 
importantly, its outcomes, against the Plan that was agreed by Members of this Board in 
April 2022. 

3. It also seeks to enable the Board to discharge its responsibility to provide oversight of the 
quality and effectiveness of the Internal Audit Partnership. The Key Performance 
Indicators for Quarter 3 are provided in Annex A.  

Internal Audit Progress Update  

4. We still have three vacancies in the team from a total of 7. However, since I last reported, 
the member of the team on long term sick leave has now returned to work and we have 
had a successful recruitment exercise. We have offered to all three posts and had those 
offers accepted. We are working towards early April start dates for each of these posts. 
These recruitments have involved slight restructure, changing our two Auditor posts to 
Trainee Auditors with our new structure shown below: 

 

5. We have secured a contract with South West Audit Partnership to deliver 5 audits for 
Dartford Borough Council during April and May as well as a Temporary Auditor to support 
us in delivering an additional 3 audits, so I am confident we will be able to complete 
sufficient work to support the Chief Audit Executive opinion in July.  

 

Audit Manager 
(SDC)

Lead Auditor 
(SDC)

Trainee Auditor 
(SDC)

Trainee Auditor
(SDC)

Lead Auditor
(DBC)

Trainee Auditor
(DBC)

Audit Support 
Officer (DBC)

Page 10Agenda Item 6



3 

6. Since our last update in January 2023, we have completed 2 audits, detailed below: 

Audit Title Current Status 
Staff Wellbeing Reasonable 
Planned Maintenance  Reasonable 

7. I have reviewed the 2022/23 audit plan and summarise our progress in the chart below.  
The issues raised above have meant that our focus in the first part of this audit year has 
unfortunately needed to be on completing 2021/22 work which explains our slow 
progress towards 2022/23 work.  As part of the chart below, you will see when we intend 
to complete the remainder of the plan. 

 

 

Internal Audit Outcomes 

8. Since our last update 6 weeks ago in January 2023, we have completed 2 audits with a 
further report in draft reporting stage.  I provide the summaries of the completed audits 
below along with their associated assurance ratings (definitions found at Annex B):  

  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

H
Planning

M H
Fieldwork

M H
Reporting

M H
Q4

M

2022/23 Audit Plan Progress

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



4 

Staff Wellbeing – Issued January 2023 

Reasonable 

The objective of the audit was to review the adequacy and effectiveness of arrangements in 
place for staff welfare. This included reviewing the Council’s Employee Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy, support and training available to staff, and how this is monitored. We found the 
Council has taken major steps in this area and was recently awarded Gold for Wellbeing 
from the Kent and Medway Workplace Wellbeing Award. We found the Employee Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy details the Council’s objectives in relation to the wellbeing of its staff 
and includes an action plan to achieve those goals. 

The Council engages well with staff, using a variety of methods to both collect data and 
inform staff of offerings and events planned. It also has a benefits scheme in place and 
offers a selection of training courses aimed at supporting wellbeing.  

 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Low 3 3 N/A 

Total 3 3 N/A 

 
Statutory Compliance – Issued February 2023 

Reasonable 
The objective of the audit was to seek assurance on the controls in place to ensure the 
Council is complying with its statutory landlord duties in relation to health and safety risks 
for all its housing stock. We found the arrangements in place to manage statutory 
compliance are generally sound to ensure compliance with legislation. However, we 
identified improvements in control to strengthen the process to limit the risk of overdue 
inspections and ensure the Council is fulfilling its statutory landlord duty.  

Key strengths 

 Detailed work programmes are in place setting out the schedule for statutory 
maintenance which are driven by legislative requirements and the date on which 
the last inspection was carried out.  

 Arrangements are in place to add or remove properties from the schedules.  
 Contractors hold the appropriate accreditations to deliver the services required 

under the contract.  
 Compliance certificates meet with industry standards.  
 Statutory compliance activity is regularly reported by the contractors and discussed 

at contract monitoring meetings.  

Page 12Agenda Item 6



5 

Areas for development 

 Monitoring arrangements require improvement to routinely identify any overdue 
inspections and to ensure all properties are included in the schedules.  

 The escalation process for properties with access issues differs across the areas of 
statutory compliance, with some processes proving more effective than others.  

 The approach to asbestos management does not align with the Council’s Asbestos 
Management Plan.  
 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

High 1 1 

Medium 2 2 

Low 2 2 

Advisory 1 1 

Total 6 6 

 
Follow Ups 
9. Internal Audit follows up all Critical, High, Medium and Low priority findings as they fall 

due. The below table shows the results of our follow up process for actions due in Quarter 
3 this financial year.  

 

Internal Audit Performance 

10. Annex A contains the results of our Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Quarter 3 
(October - December).  Our KPIs indicate a drop in performance which is to be expected 
given the staffing issues described above. The main area for action remains the timeliness 
of audit delivery; the KPI shows that no audit reports are issued by the date given on the 
audit brief.  With increased workloads as a result of the vacancies, this is understandable 
and should improve once we have a full complement of staff. 

1

9
7

0

5

00 0 0
0

2

4

6

8

10

High Medium Low

Closed Deferred Outstanding

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



6 

Conclusion  

11. Progression through the 2022/23 audit plan has been slow to get started as a result of the 
staff vacancies and sickness.  However, with our new recruits as well as other 
arrangements for increasing the delivery of audits in the last quarter, we should be able 
to deliver sufficient coverage to support the Chief Audit Executive opinion in July 2023.  

12. We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and 
co-operation to enable us to deliver our work. 

Jennifer Warrillow 

Audit Manager  
  

Page 14Agenda Item 6



7 

Annex A – Key Performance Indicators for Q3 (October - December) 

Finance: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October - December) 

F1: Percentage of budgeted days taken to complete projects – Target 100%  Reported on a cumulative basis 

Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed on the final brief vs. the actual time coded 

160% 

F2: Chargeable days – Target 75%  Reported on a quarterly basis 

Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against the assumptions made in the audit plan 

Average 65% 

F3: PSIAS conformance – Target ‘Generally Conforms’ (IIA definition)Reported annually  

Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) to ensure 
compliance with professional Standards.  

To be reported at the end of 
2022/23 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October - December) 

C1: Respondents satisfied with the overall audit experience – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client satisfaction with how we undertook the work, and takes into account our 
professionalism, approach and competence  

0/0 – No satisfaction questionnaires 
returned in quarter 3 

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings and resulting actions from our audit work 

18.5/21 88% 

 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



8 

Internal processes: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October - December) 

I1: Percentage of draft audit briefs issued at least 10 working days before the start of fieldwork.  - Target 90%   
Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project planning and communications with the client 

0/1 0% 

I2: Percentage of draft audit reports issued by the date given on the final audit brief  - Target 70% Reported on a 
project by project basis 

Indicator measures the efficiency of our audit work, currency of our audit finding and effective engagement 
between Auditors and Clients  

0/2 0% 

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL report – Target 15 working days  Reported on a 
project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise audit reports and issue the report in a timely 
manner  

3/6 50% 

Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October - December) 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales – Target 80%  Reported on a monthly basis 

Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up process 

15/21 71% 

L2: Training & development days  - Reported annually 

Indicator measures our investment and time spent on training and development against the assumptions made in 
the audit plan 

25.7 Days  

(annual budget of 29 days) 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



9 

Annex B - Definitions of Assurance ratings: 
 

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Substantial Assurance 

 

 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area 
audited. 
 

 

Reasonable Assurance 

 

  
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place.  
 
Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in 
the area audited. 
 

 

Limited Assurance 

 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.  
 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

No Assurance 

  
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified.  
 
The system of governance, risk management and control is 
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



AUDIT BOARD  
22 March 2023 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2023/24 
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Internal Audit 

service is required to establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of 
the internal audit service. This report details the audit planning process, and 
outcomes of consultations on the plan, and the resources necessary to 
deliver the plan. The report also provides details of the work to be undertaken 
over 2023/24.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24, at Appendix A to the report, be 

approved. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. In accordance with professional standards (Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards), an annual audit plan is devised setting out the priorities and 
activities to be undertaken. This risk-based plan is aligned to the key 
risks of the Council, the corporate priorities and plans, and considers  the 
wider risks facing the public sector. The report at Appendix A, sets out 
the audit planning process, an assessment of how audit resources will 
be deployed during the year, and details of the audit work to be 
completed.  

 
3.2. The Board is required, through its Terms of Reference, to consider and 

approve the Plan each year. Updates on the delivery of the Plan, and 
findings of internal audit work, will be reported throughout the year. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 
Financial Implications There are no financial implications associated 

with this report. Delivery of the Plan will be met 
from existing budgeted resources. 

Legal Implications 
 
 

Under the Account and Audit Regulations 2015, 
the Council must deliver Internal Audit services 
in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. The production of a risk-based 
Plan is a requirement of these Standards.  

Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

None 

Page 19 Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


AUDIT BOARD  
22 March 2023 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 
 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards  
 

 Audit Manager Internal Audit 
Partnership & 
Chief Officer and 
Director of 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A  

Page 20Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


1 

 

Appendix A 

Internal Audit Plan 

2023/24 
 

22 March 2023 
 

Dartford Borough Council 

 

 

Page 21 Agenda Item 7



2 

 

 

 

Introduction 

1) Under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Chief Audit Executive is 
required to develop a risk-based plan of work in order to ensure both that Internal Audit 
resources are used to best effect and that a robust overall opinion on systems of risk 
management, governance and control can be delivered at the end of the year.   

2) The main objectives of the Internal Audit Plan are to: 

 Provide sufficient coverage in order to enable an overarching opinion at the end of 
the year on the overall effectiveness of systems of governance, risk management 
and internal control  

 Be focused on key risks, and provide assurance on the Council’s management of 
these  

 Ensure that the organisation is adequately equipped to face future challenges and 
achieve strategic priorities 

 Provide assurance on core systems and key controls 
 Provide advice and consultancy services based on management requests, usually in 

relation to new and developing systems and processes 

3) In order to achieve these objectives, I have followed a detailed risk-based planning 
process.  This has included review of corporate strategies and risk registers, meetings 
with all Service Managers, Heads of Service and Directors along with consideration of 
the wider environment.  I have taken into account how changes within the internal and 
external environments over the past year may have changed the risk profile of the 
Council as well as horizon scanning publications such as the Institute of Internal Audit’s 
Risk in Focus 2023 research.  

Resources  

4) In developing the Plan, I have to consider whether resources are sufficient to meet the 
Council’s needs. As a result of restructuring the Audit Team, the team will have two new 
Trainee Auditors and a new Audit Support Officer. Therefore a significant amount of 
time will be spent training these three new members of staff. The Trainees will also be 
undertaking the Internal Audit Professional level 7 Apprenticeship which will require 
them to use 20% of their contracted hours towards studying. 

 

Page 22Agenda Item 7

https://i.emlfiles4.com/cmpdoc/3/7/5/4/8/1/files/73966_risk-in-focus-2023-board-briefing.pdf?utm_campaign=2501505_Insight_members_061022&utm_medium=email&utm_source=CIIA&mid=63091&dm_i=3YF1,1HM69,87WXWJ,5HRIE,1
https://i.emlfiles4.com/cmpdoc/3/7/5/4/8/1/files/73966_risk-in-focus-2023-board-briefing.pdf?utm_campaign=2501505_Insight_members_061022&utm_medium=email&utm_source=CIIA&mid=63091&dm_i=3YF1,1HM69,87WXWJ,5HRIE,1


3 

5) I have calculated the total days available in 2023/24 for audit work to be 420 per 
Council. This takes into account all resource, minus allowances for administrative tasks, 
leave and training. The proposed breakdown of how these 420 days will be used for 
Dartford is shown in the Chart below:  

 

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



4 

Chart 1 – Internal Audit resource 

 

Assurance Work  

6) Our audit plan consists of two lists of audits, those which link directly to the Council’s 
strategic risk register and therefore are deemed as high priority. The second list, 
medium priority, consists of those areas where there is a gap in audit knowledge or 
operational risk profiles indicate assurance would be beneficial, though do not 
necessarily link directly to the strategic risk register. 

7) We propose to undertake all the high priority audits and approximately half the medium 
priority audits. The medium priority audits will be selected each quarter based upon 
their risk profile at the time.  

8) The table over the page shows both the high and medium priority audits we aim to 
complete during 2023/24. 

  

Page 24Agenda Item 7



5 

Audit Title Priority 

Corporate Services 

IT Service Desk High 

Household Support Fund High 

Continuous  Staff Performance Monitoring High 

Budget Monitoring High 

Accounts Payable continuous assurance High 

Workforce Strategy/Succession Planning High 

IT Project Management Medium 

Business Rates income collection Medium 

Transparency Code Medium 

Insurance Medium 

Learning & Development Medium 

Growth and Community 

Corporate Project Management High 

Estate Compliance Management High 

Building Control administration & fees Medium 

Customer Services – Front Desk Medium 

Housing & Public Protection 

Private Sector Housing – Landlord Complaints High 

Breyer Contract Management High 

Parking Income Collection Medium 

Page 25 Agenda Item 7



6 

Audit Title Priority 

Licensing Administration Medium 

Houses of Multiple Occupation Medium 

Disabled Repairs Grant Medium 

Pest Control Medium 

Food Safety Medium 

Parks Management Medium 

Cemeteries Medium 

CCTV Medium 

 

Non-Assurance Work 

9) As well as undertaking assurance work, we plan to deliver 121 days’ of non-assurance 
related work. Much of this is being kept aside to allow for projects which come up during 
the year that we are unable to plan for, such as investigations, ad hoc advice, guidance 
and grant verification work.  

10) We also plan to improve and relaunch the Council’s operational risk management 
framework during this coming year as well as complete some requested consultancy 
work. 

Performance Indicators 

11) As a result of changes in methodology, some of our performance indicators from 
2022/23 are no longer fit for purpose and therefore a new suite of indicators is 
proposed below. These will allow for a renewed focus on the added value the Internal 
Audit Partnership brings to the Council and enables a new focus on implementing and 
embedding an increased use of data analytics to support our work. 

  

Page 26Agenda Item 7



7 

 

 

Finance: Associated performance indicators 

F1: Percentage of budgeted days taken to complete projects – Target 110% 

Reported on a cumulative basis 

Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed on the final brief vs. the 
actual time coded 

F2: Chargeable days – Target 65% 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against the assumptions made in 
the audit plan 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators 

C1: Percentage of audits with real time service improvements – Information only 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures percentage of audits which result in service improvements 
identified and actioned during the audit process and not included in management 
action plans 

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions – Target 90%  

Reported project by project  

Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings and resulting actions from 
our audit work 

Internal processes: Associated performance indicators 

I1: Percentage of draft audit reports issued by the date given on the final audit brief  - Target 70% 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures the efficiency of our audit work and effective engagement between auditors 
and clients  

I2: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL report – Target 15 working days 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise audit reports and currency of 
reporting 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7



8 

Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales – Target 80% 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit actions and the effectiveness of our 
follow-up process 

L2: Number of audits using data analytics tools – Target 60% 

Reported quarterly 

Indicator measures our development of the use of data analytics to enable greater assurance to 
be provided. 

12) Some of the indicators remain the same but with different target. This is to reflect the 
changing skill profile of the team, with the change in two posts from experienced 
auditors to trainees, there will be an impact in delivery and I have therefore amended 
our targets to reflect this while also encouraging an improvement in our performance. 

Other Activities 

13) During the year, we will be re-developing our Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Program and reporting to Members on progress towards its completion. This new 
program will address skills shortages within the team as well as improving our processes 
to ensure we are meeting the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and improving the 
service we deliver to the Council. 
 

Signed: Chief Audit Executive 

Page 28Agenda Item 7



AUDIT BOARD  
22 March 2023 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
 

 
1. Summary 
 

1.1 In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Internal Audit 
service is required to implement and maintain a Charter, defining its purpose, 
authority and responsibility.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Internal Audit Charter, at Appendix A to the report, be approved. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards are mandatory for all Internal 
Audit functions These Standards, based on the mandatory elements of 
the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) of the Global 
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), are intended to promote further 
improvement in the professionalism, quality, consistency and 
effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector.  

3.2. The Council’s Internal Audit Charter, at Appendix A to the report, applies 
the Standards and describes how internal audit will add value to the 
Council and the nature of the services it provides. The Charter also 
establishes the internal audit partnership’s position within the Council, 
including reporting lines, as well as authorising access to records, 
personnel and physical properties relevant to performing engagements. 

3.3. The Charter should be reviewed periodically to ensure it remains 
relevant to the needs of the Council. The Board is required, through its 
Terms of Reference, to consider and approve the Charter. 

3.4. There are minimal changes to the charter, however, the IIA are currently 
undertaking a consultation on major changes to the Standards. The new 
Standards will be released at the end of this calendar year and become 
effective 12 months after their release date. Therefore, we will look to 
further review and refresh the Charter based upon the same timeline. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
  

Page 29 Agenda Item 8

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf


AUDIT BOARD  
22 March 2023 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 
Financial Implications There are no financial implications associated 

with this report. Delivery of the Charter will be 
met from existing budgeted resources. 

Legal Implications 
 
 

Under the Account and Audit Regulations 2015, 
the Council must deliver Internal Audit services 
in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. The production of a Charter is 
a requirement of these Standards.  

Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

None 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 
 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 
 Not applicable 
 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Charter  
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards  
 
 

  Internal Audit 
Partnership & 
Chief Officer and 
Director of 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A  

Page 30Agenda Item 8



 
Appendix A 

Internal Audit  
Charter 

 

MARCH 2023 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31 Agenda Item 8



1 
Internal Audit Charter 

 
 

Introduction 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide a consolidated approach to internal auditing standards 
across the whole of public sector. They are an expansion of international standards by Institute of Internal 
Auditors, adding elements specific to the UK public Sector. The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider 
mandatory (1010) elements of the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which is applicable 
to all UK Local Authorities: 

 

The Standards require Internal Audit to implement and maintain an Internal Audit Charter (1000). The 
Charter defines formally the purpose, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit. 

Mission & Core Principles  

The IPPF’s overarching mandated Mission for internal audit services is: ‘to enhance and protect 
organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight.’  The ‘Core 
principles’ that underpin delivery of the IPPF mission require internal audit functions to:  

 Demonstrate integrity;  

 Demonstrate competence & due professional care;  

 Be objective and free from undue influence (independent);  

 Align with the strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation;  

 Be appropriately positioned and adequately resourced;  

 Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement;  

 Communicate effectively;  

 Provide risk-based assurance;  

 Be insightful, proactive, and future-focused; and  

 Promote organisational improvement  

Definition of Internal 
Auditing:
‘An independent, objective assurance 
and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s 
operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness 
of risk management, control and 
governance processes’

(PSIAS March 2017)

Page 32Agenda Item 8

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjbr-nhsqPdAhWMK8AKHZYhCnQQFjAAegQIABAB&url=https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards&usg=AOvVaw2ctuQ9SIXi1Py5w02rCb0b


2 
Internal Audit Charter 

 
 

Authority (1000) 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (regulation 5). The latter requires 
authorities to:  

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” 

Deriving authority from those Regulations and those authorising this Charter, Internal Audit is free to plan 
and undertake any audit work necessary to fulfil its scope (1110.A1) (the scope of the service is covered later 
in this document). To enable full discharge of its duties, Internal Audit: 

 Has a right of direct access to the Chair of the Audit Board and Directors (1110 PSR & 1111); 

 Has free and unrestricted access to all services, records (including those held electronically), 
property and personnel (Members, officers and third parties including contractors) that it deems 
necessary in order to undertake its work. 

Purpose (1000) 

Internal audit is a vital component to the Council’s effective running, and will provide assurance, advice 
and insight to help protect and enhance the internal control, governance and risk management 
arrangements. The role of internal auditing has a mandatory definition within the Standards, as: 
  
‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an 
organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes’ 

The service has a wider role to be the Council’s ‘critical friend’, able to confidently challenge current 
practice, champion best practice and support management in improvement. This is achieved through 
internal audit providing assurance and consulting activities.  

Responsibility (1000)  

Responsibility for maintaining an effective system of internal audit within Dartford Borough Council lies 
with the Head of Finance (s151 Officer).  
 
Provision of the internal audit service is through the Dartford and Sevenoaks Internal Audit Partnership, a 
shared service of audit professionals. The role of Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is fulfilled by the Audit 
Manager, who is responsible for managing the internal audit service in accordance with the IPPF and 
arrangements as set out in this Charter.  
 
For the purposes of this Charter the following definitions apply: 

Page 33 Agenda Item 8

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted


3 
Internal Audit Charter 

 

 The Board: Those charged with governance. For Dartford this role is fulfilled by the Audit Board. 
The Board is responsible for approving the Charter and Audit Plan, and has oversight of the external 
assessment process.   The Board will receive progress updates including the results of work 
undertaken and outcomes of the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (defined later in this 
document). 

 Management: Those responsible for executive leadership and direction. For Dartford this role is 
fulfilled by the Leadership Team. Management is engaged in approving the Charter, reviewing and 
commenting on the Audit Plan, and will receive the results of internal audit work as set out in the 
scope of this Charter.  

The Audit Manager reports functionally to the Audit Board, and, with respect to activities undertaken at 
Dartford, reports administratively to the Head of Finance (s151 Officer).  

Independence & objectivity (1100) 

Internal Audit will remain free from undue interference in determining the scope and nature of its work 
and communicating its results. The Audit Manager will consider independence and objectivity as part of 
each audit and will confirm independence and objectivity at least annually to the Audit Board.   

Auditors must maintain ‘an unbiased attitude that allows them to perform their engagements in such a 
manner that they believe in their work product and that no quality compromises are made’ (PSIAS March 2017). 
Maintaining objectivity requires auditors to be impartial and to avoid conflicts of interests that may 
otherwise impact on their professional judgement.  

To achieve the degree of independence and objectivity necessary to effectively discharge its 
responsibilities, arrangements are in place to ensure the internal audit activity:  

 Is not authorised to perform executive or operational responsibilities  

 Cannot initiate or approve accounting transactions (outside of administration of the service) 

 Cannot direct the activities of any Council employee (outside of administration of the service) 

 Has the freedom and authority to report in its own name  

 Recognises and addresses potential conflicts of interest through internal audit staff not undertaking 
an audit for at least 1 year in an area where they have had previous operational roles (1130.A1) and 
through adherence to the Council’s declaration of interest processes 

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment will be 
disclosed to ‘Management’ and ‘the Board’.  

Ethical Conduct and Due Professional Care (1200) 

Internal auditors will conduct themselves at all time in accordance with the principles contained in the 
professional Code of Ethics (Competence, Confidentiality, Integrity and Objectivity). They will also behave 
in accordance with the Seven Principles of Public Life (Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, 
Openness, Honesty, Leadership) and the Employee Code of Conduct.  

Page 34Agenda Item 8



4 
Internal Audit Charter 

 
Internal auditors will perform work with due professional care, competence and diligence. Internal 
auditors cannot be expected to identify every control weakness or irregularity but their work is designed to 
enable them to provide reasonable assurance regarding the controls examined within the scope of their 
review.  

Internal auditors have a duty to develop and maintain their professional skills, knowledge and judgement 
based on appropriate training, ability, integrity and objectivity. Internal auditors will appraise themselves 
of the ‘Mission’, ‘Core Principles’, ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and the ‘Standards’ 
and will work in accordance with them in the conduct of their duties.  

Internal auditors will be alert to the possibility of intentional wrongdoing, errors and omissions, poor value 
for money, failure to comply with management policy and conflicts of interest. They have a direct, personal 
responsibility to report any suspicions of fraud, corruption or improper conduct to the Audit Manager in 
accordance with agreed procedures.  

Internal auditors will treat the information they receive in carrying out their duties as confidential. There 
will be no unauthorised disclosure of information unless there is a legal or professional requirement 
(subject to an obligation to keep information confidential) to do so. Confidential information gained in the 
course of internal audit work will not be used for personal gain, and will be managed in accordance with 
data protection and relevant information governance policies.  

Scope of Internal Audit Activities 

Assurance 

Internal Audit work includes tasks that support the annual Audit Opinion. This assurance work covers three 
areas: 

 Internal Control: The process for assuring achievement of the Council’s objectives in operational 
effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations and 
policies. It incorporates both financial and non-financial systems. 

 Corporate Governance: The system of rules, practices and processes by which the Council is 
directed and controlled. 

 Risk Management: The process of identifying, quantifying and managing the risks that the Council 
faces in attempting to achieve its objectives. 

In addition to those three core areas Internal Audit may, subject to specific arrangements, undertake 
engagements in the areas of non-audit work, counter fraud and operational risk management as detailed 
in this Charter. 

Internal Audit Plan (2010) 

The Audit Manager produces a Risk Based Internal Audit Plan to determine the priorities of the internal 
audit activity. The plan is developed in consultation with management, taking into account of the Council’s 
priorities, objectives, risk management framework and internal audits own judgement of risks.  

Page 35 Agenda Item 8



5 
Internal Audit Charter 

 
 
 The Leadership Team is consulted on the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan, which details internal audit 
activities for the forthcoming year. The plan is reported to the Audit Board for approval.  

A resource assessment will be conducted regularly by the Audit Manager as part of the risk based audit 
plan to ensure that the resources needed to achieve that plan are appropriate, sufficient, and can be 
effectively deployed (2030). The Audit Manager is responsible for delivery of the plan and providing updates 
of progress throughout the year.  
 

Non Assurance Work  

Consultancy (1000) 

Internal Audit resource may sometimes be more usefully focused towards providing advice and 
consultancy rather than assurance. Consultancy (such as advice, guidance and training) are activities 
undertaken by internal audit that are intended to add value and improve governance, risk management 
and control processes. 

As such, the Standards allow for consultancy work to be completed, providing that safeguards are in place 
to manage any potential or perceived impairment to independence and objectivity (1112 PSR). For Dartford 
non-audit work may be commissioned providing that: 

 The nature, objective and scope are defined and agreed 

 Significant requests have been approved by a member of the  Leadership Team 

 The service has the right skills, experience and available resource, and 

 Internal Audit involvement does not constitute a conflict of interest and will not involve assuming a 
management role 

The Audit Manager is responsible for ensuring all requests are reviewed in accordance with the above 
criteria before making the final decision. With respect to significant requests, defined as those which 
require the purchase of additional resources or amendment to the agreed audit plan, the Audit Manager 
will seek approval from the Chair of the Audit Board.  

Summaries of consultancy engagements will be communicated to the Board as part of the regular 
reporting of internal audit activities.  

Risk Management  

Internal Audit provides a strategic advisory role for risk management, which may include developing the 
risk management strategy with Leadership Team. This role, along with providing training and advice / 
coaching are all roles that are legitimate internal audit roles as defined by the IIA’s position paper on The 
Role of Internal Auditing in Enterprise-Wide Risk Management. In taking these roles, the following 
safeguards to independence are in place: 

 Internal separation of duties between the officers co-ordinating risk management and those 
undertaking audits 

Page 36Agenda Item 8



6 
Internal Audit Charter 

 

 Overall responsibility for the risk management sits with Leadership Team and the Audit Board, and 
risk management is reported as a separate function to the internal audit service  

 Resource to provide risk management services is made available and reported in the audit plan, 
agreed by the Audit Board 

 Internal Audit do not set the risk appetite for the Council, or take operational responsibility for risk 
actions  

 Any review or internal audit of the effectiveness of the risk management process will be 
undertaken independently from outside of the audit partnership. This enables independent 
assurance to be provided to the Board 

Counter Fraud 

The role of internal audit regarding Counter Fraud is set out in the Counter-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. 
The Audit Manager reviews and updates this Strategy on behalf of the Chief Officer & Director of 
Corporate Services and investigates and reports on internal cases of alleged or potential fraud.  The Audit 
Manager also has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Whistleblowing Policy 
and for keeping records of allegations received and the outcomes. . Such investigations and responsibilities 
present a potential impairment to independence. Should assurance on these activities be required, it will 
be commissioned from a third party.  The outcomes of counter fraud work are communicated to the Chief 
Officer & Director of Corporate Services and the Audit Board where appropriate to do so. 

Management Responsibilities  

To be effective, the Internal Audit service requires full co-operation of senior management. In approval of 
this Charter, the Audit Board and the Head of Finance (s151 Officer) direct management to co-operate with 
the Internal Audit service in the delivery of their work. This includes, but is not limited to, engagement in 
the planning process for individual audits, acting as audit sponsors, providing access to appropriate 
records, personnel and systems, responding to draft reports and implementing audit actions in line with 
agreed timescales. 

Management will also update the Audit Manager of significant proposed changes to processes, systems, 
organisational structure, newly identified significant risks and cases of suspected or detected fraud, 
corruption or impropriety. 

Management will also ensure that the Internal Audit service has sufficient resources to fulfil the Risk Based 
Internal Audit Plan as agreed by the Audit Board.  

Reporting (2400) 

The Audit Manager will deliver an annual opinion (2450) a report that can be used by the organisation to 
inform its Annual Governance Statement. The audit opinion will conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of internal controls, governance and risk management. The 
annual report will incorporate as a minimum:  

Page 37 Agenda Item 8



7 
Internal Audit Charter 

 

 The scope including the time period covered for the opinion  

 Scope limitations   

 Consideration of all related projects including the reliance on other assurance providers   

 A summary of the information that supports the opinion   

 The risk or control framework or other criteria used as a basis for the overall opinion   

 The overall opinion, judgment or conclusion reached 

 A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the independence of 
the service, and the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.   

Internal audit will communicate the results of audit reviews, consultancy engagements, and updates on the 
performance of the internal audit activity to Management and the Audit Board.  
 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (1300)  

The Dartford and Sevenoaks Internal Audit Partnership is committed to providing a high quality internal 
audit service that meets the needs of its stakeholders and adds value to both Councils. It aims to support 
the achievement of strategic objectives by providing independent, insightful assurance on risk 
management, governance and control.  The QAIP has been designed as a critical tool to deliver this 
commitment by creating mechanisms to identify and implement improvements and to embed a culture of 
continuous improvement within the team.  The QAIP covers periodic internal and external assessments, 
supervision of engagements, Key Performance Indicators, customer feedback questionnaires and auditor 
self-assessments. The full QAIP will be provided to stakeholders on request.  

Review  

The Charter will be reviewed annually and presented to Audit Board for approval alongside the Annual 
Plan.  

The Audit Manager will disclose any areas of non-conformance (1322) with the Code of Ethics or the 
Standards, including the impacts on the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity to senior 
management and the Audit Board if identified. 

The Charter is authorised within Dartford Borough Council with the agreement of the Chairman of the 
Audit Board and Head of Finance (s151 Officer).   

Page 38Agenda Item 8



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 MARCH 2023 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER REVIEW 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 To present an updated Strategic Risk Register to the Audit Board for 

approval.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Strategic Risk Register, at Appendix C to the report, be approved. 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. The Strategic Risk Register focusses on those risks that may impact on the 

ability to function effectively as a council and deliver key services to 
residents. The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed every six months and a 
revised Register is shown at Appendix C for approval.  

 
3.2. For all risks, the current and target controls have been reviewed. In some 

cases, the previous target controls have now been implemented, which 
may have led to a reduction in the impact or likelihood of the risk occurring.  
For some risks, further target controls have been identified to try to reduce 
the risk rating. 

 
3.3. The risk ratings for each risk have also been reviewed using the impact 

matrix at Appendix A and the likelihood definitions at Appendix B. Where 
the ratings have changed, both the previous and current ratings are shown 
so Members can clearly see how the rating has moved.  

 
3.4. The risk ratings for the following risks have been amended: 

 
Risk SR02 Infectious Diseases 
The likelihood of a further outbreak of Covid-19 is considered to be reduced 
and this has been reflected across all three of the risk ratings. However, the 
impact relating to an outbreak remains the same. 
 
Risk SR03 Emergency Planning 
This risk has been reduced due to additional resource being put in to 
strengthen the Council’s emergency planning arrangements. 
 
Risk SR17 Elections 2023 
A new risk was added in the previous review in respect of the Elections Act 
2022 changes. At that time, there was significant concern around the lack 
of secondary legislation and guidance in order to implement the changes 
and set the rules by which voter identification would work in practice. It 
therefore reflected the significant risk of there being insufficient time to 
implement the changes successfully for the Local Elections in May 2023. 
Both the secondary legislation and guidance are now in place and 

Page 39 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 MARCH 2023 

therefore, in the current rating, the likelihood of the risk occurring has been 
reduced.  

 
3.5. Any risks within the Strategic Risk Register with a current score within the 

‘High’ category (highlighted red in the risk matrices at Appendix C) are 
considered outside the Council’s risk appetite and further action will be 
necessary to reduce the risk. Five risks have been identified on the 
Strategic Risk Register at Appendix C as being within the ‘High’ category 
for their current rating: SR08 contract/supply failure; SR10 building 
maintenance; SR11 housing demand and homelessness; SR13 climate 
change and SR17 Elections 2023. For all of these risks, further control 
measures have been identified to reduce the risk below the ‘High’ level. 
 

3.6. Any ‘Medium’ risks currently scoring 10 or above are also likely to be 
outside the Council’s risk appetite. Several of the risks at Appendix C have 
a current rating of 10 or above and remain at 10 or above even after further 
controls have been identified. These risks are discussed by the Leadership 
Team and senior management on a regular basis to determine whether 
further, cost-effective action can further reduce impact or likelihood. 
However, for some of these risks, the Council may not be able to identify 
any other practical controls and consequently, these risks will need to be 
tolerated. 
 

3.7. ‘Low’ scoring risks are considered within the Council’s risk appetite and no 
further action is necessary. 
 

3.8. It is the role of the Audit Board to maintain an overview of the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council. This 
includes reviewing the Strategic Risk Register. Further updates to the 
Register will be presented to the Audit Board on a six monthly basis.  

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

Not applicable 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 
Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications 
 

None  

Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

None 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Page 40Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22 MARCH 2023 

Risk Assessment As detailed in the Strategic Risk Register 
 

6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

6.1 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Impact Matrix 
Appendix B – Likelihood Definitions 
Appendix C – Strategic Risk Register 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Sarah 
Martin 

Leadership 
Team 

N/A 

      

Page 41 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX  

 Financial Service Delivery & 
Capability Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Critical 
(5) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 

multiple £m’s 
(Operational) Over £250K 

Failure to deliver statutory 
service / service disruption 

for >14 days 

National adverse publicity 
perceived as failing in a 

significant area of 
responsibility 

Breach of law, regulations 
leading to significant sanctions 
eg enforcement and penalties 

 
Breakdown of governance / 
internal control resulting in 

fraud, litigation and 
contractual risks   

Significant staff dissatisfaction  / 
increased long term absence & staff 

turnover 
 

Loss of culture and value framework 

Major 
(4) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 
£1m+ overspend in budget 

by >£1m+ 
(Operational) £100, 001 to 

£250K 

Unable to deliver 
discretionary service / 

service disruption for >14 
days 

Sustained negative local media 
attention & damage to public 

confidence 

Breach of law or statutory 
duty leading to some sanction 

 
Breakdown of internal 
controls open to abuse 

Adverse staff dissatisfaction / likely 
increased absence and turnover of 

staff 
 

Negative impact on culture & value 
framework 

Moderate 
(3) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 
£500k - £1m / overspend 

in budget by >£500k 
(Operational) £25, 001 to 

£100,000 

Unsatisfactory service 
performance / service 
disruption of >5 days 

Isolated negative local 
publicity  

Breach of law or  or internal 
standards (limited sanctions) 

 
Isolated internal control 

weaknesses 

Declining staff dissatisfaction 
 

Isolated instances of behaviours 
outside of value framework 

Minor 
(2) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 

£100k - £500k / overspend 
in budget by >£100k 

(Operational) £10, 001 to 
£25, 000 

Reduced service delivery / 
service disruption for 7 

hours 

Local publicity, but 
manageable through 

communication channels 

Breach of internal policies 
 

Internal controls partially 
effective 

Isolated areas of staff dissatisfaction 
/ likely impact on absence and 

turnover 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9



 Financial Service Delivery & 
Capability Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Minimal 
 (1) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses less than 

£100k / overspend in 
budget less than £100k 

(Operational) £10, 000 or 
less 

Disruption managed within 
normal day to day 

operations 

Unlikely to cause adverse 
publicity  

Breaches of internal 
procedures / working 

practices 

Loss of staff morale but unlikely to 
result in absence or turnover of staff 

 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX  B – LIKELIHOOD SCALES 

Very Likely = 5 

The council is experience problems in this are or expects to in the next 12 months 

No controls are in place. 

Likely = 4 

The council has experienced problems in this area in the past three years 

Controls may be in place but are generally ignored. 

Possible = 3 

The council has in the past experienced problems in this area but not in the past three years. 

Some controls are in place and generally work but there have been occasions when they have 
failed and problems have arisen. 

Unlikely = 2 

Previous experience discounts this risk as being likely but other orgs have experience 
problems in this area. 

There are controls in place that whilst not tested, appear to be effective 

Very Unlikely = 1 

Previous experience at this and other orgs makes this outcome highly unlikely to occur. 

There are effective, tested controls in place that prevent occurrence of this risk 

 

Page 45 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Financial Sustainability Risk Ref SR01 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Failure to ensure financial sustainability to allow the Council to undertake its core functions, 

deliver services, meet its corporate priorities and objectives 
Risk Owner Tim Sams 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Changes in 
Government 
funding structure 

 Reduction in 
business rates 
income 

 Budgeted income 
levels not being 
achieved 

 Significant increase 
in inflation leading 
to increased costs 

 Major contract 
failure 

 Poor decision 
making and 
business planning 

 Failure in 
compliance/ 
governance 

 

 Inability to deliver 
services 

 Inability to meet 
corporate 
priorities 

 Inability to meet 
legislative 
requirements 

 S151 issues S114 
notice 

 External auditor 
review 

 Government 
taskforce brought 
in 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Impact on 
residents and 
communities 

 
   x    

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Annual budget exercise and review of 

Medium Term Financial Plan, including 
review of reserve levels 

 Regular budget monitoring reported to 
Leadership Team and Cabinet 

 Investments approved in line with 
Treasury Management Strategy 

 Training of budget managers 
 Financial implications considered as 

part of all committee reports 
 Role of Audit Board and Treasury 

Management Panel. 
 
 

 
  x     

          
       

       
        

 
  x     

          
       

       
        

 

Source of assurance: Value for Money assessment by external auditor, Grant Thornton; audit report of budget setting in 20/21 received ‘Substantial’ 
assurance; audit of treasury management in 21/22 received ‘Reasonable’ assurance  

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Infectious diseases Risk Ref SR02 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Unable to respond to impacts of pandemics, including long term impacts, on the Council’s 

finances, communities and businesses 
Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 New variant of 
Covid-19 leading to 
lockdowns or other 
restrictive measures 

 Pandemic or 
outbreak of other 
infectious diseases 

 Inability to deliver 
services due to 
lack of staff 

 Inability to meet 
corporate 
priorities 

 Inability to meet 
legislative 
requirements 

 Support required 
for the most 
vulnerable  

 Businesses 
suffering major 
losses or 
potentially having 
to cease business 

 Pressure on 
Council’s finances 

WAS 
     x  

          
       

       
        

 
NOW 

   x    

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity plans in place with 

most staff being able to work from 
home 

 Staff experienced in running 
emergency hubs and providing food 
and support to the vulnerable 

 Good working relationships in place 
with CAB and Healthy Living Centre 

 Good networks with local businesses 
 Staff experienced in processing  

business grants at short notice 
 Healthy level of financial reserves 
 Both proactive and responsive 

communications with our communities 
through social media and govdelivery 

 
 

WAS 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
NOW 

       

          
    x   

       
        

WAS 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
NOW 

       

          
    x   

       
        

 

  

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Emergency Planning Risk Ref SR03 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Lack of ability to be able to effectively  respond as a category 1 responder to a major 

emergency and maintain a suitable response without affecting essential service delivery 
Risk Owner Caroline Hicks 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Extreme weather 
 Counter terrorist attack 
 Unpredictable 

district/regional/national 
emergency event 

 Impact on 
communities and 
environment 

 Reputational 
damage if not 
handled well 

 Drain on staff 
resources 
impacting ability 
to deliver other 
key services 

 Financial impact 
if can’t claim back 
costs incurred 

 
       

      x    
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Emergency & business continuity 

plans in place and regularly 
reviewed 

 Part of Kent Resilience Forum 
 Relevant staff undertake 

emergency plan training and take 
part in exercises 

 Ability to call on mutual aid 
 Reserves in place that could be 

called upon 
 Emergency Planning function is 

now FTE rather than being split 
with licencing function 
 
Target Controls: 

 Further training for key officers inc 
Incident Liaison and Emergency 
Centre staffing being organised 
(target date: by September 2023) 
 

WAS: 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
NOW: 

       

          
    x   

       
        

WAS: 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
NOW: 

       

          
   x    

       
        

 

Source of assurance: draft audit report on Emergency Planning provides limited assurance, the action plan resulting from the audit is to be implemented 

  

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Business Continuity Risk Ref SR04 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Lack of ability to be able to respond to a business continuity incident so as to minimise 

service disruptions 
Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Civic Centre out of 
action 

 Cyber attack 
 Pandemic 
 Failure of supply 

chains/contractors 
 Travel disruption, 

including lack of 
fuel 

 Lack of staff to 
deliver key 
services 

 Impact on 
communities of 
reduction/loss of 
services 

 Loss of key 
systems 

 Inability to 
support critical 
projects  

 Financial impact 
 Reputational 

damage 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity plans in place and 

being kept under review. 
 Annual business continuity exercise 

being undertaken. 
 Hybrid working in place with majority of 

staff being able to work from home 
 Disaster recovery arrangements for IT in 

place at Fairfield Leisure Centre   
 Cyber security arrangements regularly 

reviewed 
 Cyber awareness training for staff being 

regularly undertaken 
  Mutual aid arrangements in place 
 Reserves in place that could be called 

upon 
 Both proactive and responsive 

communications with our communities 
through social media and govdelivery 

 A full DR plan is now in place 
 
Target Controls: 

 DR arrangements to be fully tested 
(target date: Q3 2023) 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    x   

       
        

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

 Cyber awareness training to be rolled 
out to new members after local elections 
(target date:by end of July 2023)  

 LGA cyber 360 review actions to be 
implemented (target date: end of June 
2023)  

 Cyber Security Strategy to be approved 
(target date: goes to Cabinet 23 March 
2023) 

 New Cyber Security Analyst post to be 
appointed (target date: end May 2023) 

 Implementation of cyber resilience 
contract (target date: Q3 2023) 
 

 

Source of assurance: recent audit report gave ‘Reasonable’ assurance over the business continuity arrangements in place  

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Workforce Risk Ref SR05 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Unable to recruit and retain appropriate staffing resource to deliver services Risk Owner Sarah Martin 
Triggers Impact Original Risk 

Matrix 
Controls Current Risk 

Matrix 
Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Key staff leaving 
 High turnover in 

specific service 
areas 

 Inability to recruit 
to key posts 

 Lack of 
development 
opportunity 

 Mass absence from 
work 

 Not having the right 
staff in posts with 
the right skill set 

 Loss of expertise 
and corporate 
memory 

 Loss of capacity 
and resilience 

 High recruitment 
costs 

 Additional training 
costs 

 Impact on morale, 
culture and 
performance 

 Increased levels of 
stress and staff 
absence 

 Service delivery 
impact 

 Reputational 
impact 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Regular review of HR policies 
 Management of sickness absences 
 EAP service in place for staff 
 Mental health awareness training 

provided and mental first aiders 
available 

 Hybrid working in place 
 Exit interviews 
 Workforce strategy 
 Corporate Health & Wellbeing Group 
 In-year pay award given to reflect cost 

of living increases  
 
Target Controls: 

 Succession planning (target date: 
ongoing) 

 Staff development needs identified 
 Induction process to be updated and 

film to be completed (target date: end 
of April 2023) 

 Review whether current workforce is 
adequate to meet current workload 
(target date: ongoing) 

 

 
       

          
       

     x  
        

 
       

          
       

    x   
        

 

Source of assurance: audit report 19/20 on HR policy compliance received ‘Substantial’ assurance; Kent & Medway Gold award for Wellbeing achieved June 
2022  

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Legal compliance and governance Risk Ref SR06 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Failure in systems of governance within the Council and partnerships or other collaborative 

arrangements; inability to recognise and adapt to changes in legislation and to ensure 
proper governance to protect the Council from poor practice and mismanagement 

Risk Owner Marie Kelly-
Stone 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Staff and members 
not understanding 
their governance 
roles and 
responsibilities 

 Good governance 
not being observed 

 Risk and 
performance not 
being effectively 
managed 

 Not adhering to 
policies 

 Not overseeing 
governance 
standards of 
partnerships or 
other collaborative 
arrangements 

 Not being up to 
date with current 
legislation 

 Financial loss 
 Service delivery 

issues 
 Reputational 

damage 
 Litigation 

proceedings 
 Legislative 

breaches  
 Excessive legal 

costs 
 Government or 

peer intervention 
 Regulator finding 

fault e.g. external 
auditor or 
Ombudsmen 

 Failure of 
partnerships 

 Fraud and corrupt 
practices 
identified 
 

 
       

         x 

       

       
        

 Effective scrutiny by Audit Board 
 Annual Governance Statement 
 Effective Internal Audit Team with risk 

based Audit Plan 
 Regular review of Constitution 
 Member/Employee Codes of Conduct 

promoted 
 Officer and Member register of 

interests 
 Member/Officer Gifts and Hospitality 

registers maintained 
 Financial Regulations & Procedures and 

Procurement rules embedded 
 Whistleblowing Policy & Counter-Fraud 

& Corruption Strategy regularly 
reviewed and promoted 

 Staff briefing on governance issues 
 Legal implications considered in all 

committee reports 
 Annual Monitoring Officer reports to 

Audit Board 
 Lessons learned from complaints’ 

handling  
 Independent member appointed to 

Audit Board 

 
       

  x       
       

       
        

 
       

  x       
       

       
        

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

 
 
Target Controls: 

 Employee Code of Conduct under 
review (target date: to be finalised by 
December 2023) 

 

  

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Information Security & Management Risk Ref SR07 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Risk of cyber attack, data loss, breach of GDPR Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Cyber attack 
 Unsupported software 
 GDPR breach 
 Unintentional 

disclosure of personal 
or confidential 
information 

 Theft of 
equipment/papers/data 
belonging to the 
Council, partners or 
third party companies 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Financial 
penalties 

 Investigation by 
Information 
Commissioner  

 Significant service 
interruption, 
damage, financial 
impact and loss of 
data from cyber 
attack 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Experienced Data Protection Officer 
 Data protection training for all staff 

and members 
 Data Protection Policy 
 Data Retention Guidelines 
 Confidential disposal of waste 
 Data Privacy Impact Assessments 
 Data sharing agreements in place 
 Information Governance Board in 

place 
 PCI/DSS compliance checks 
 Software upgrades and patches 

applied 
 Secure server room 
 Firewall and independent IT security 

health checks  
 Cyber awareness partnerships: 

National Cyber Security Centre 
Cyber Security Information Sharing 
Partnership 
WARP 
KPSN 
Kent Connects 

 Regular cyber awareness training 
undertaken by staff 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    X   

       
        

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Target Controls: 
 Cyber awareness training to be 

implemented for all members after 
the May elections (target date: end 
of July 2023) 

 Specific cyber training for IT (target 
date: TBC) 

 Implementation of actions from LGA 
cyber 360 assessment (target date: 
by end of June 2023) 

 New Cyber Security Analyst to be 
appointed (target date: end May 
2023) 

  Implementation of cyber resilience 
contract (target date: Q3 2023) 
 

 

Source of assurance: external annual IT security check   

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Contract/Supply failure Risk Ref SR08 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Ineffectual contract management or external factors impacting on the continued delivery of 

services 
Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Major 
supplier/contractor 
goes into 
liquidation or leaves 
the Borough 

 Over reliance on 
single supplier 

 Relationship 
breakdown with 
supplier/contractor 

 Lack of/ineffectual 
contract 
management 

 World 
events/inflationary 
pressures 

 Increased contract 
costs 
 

 Financial impact 
 Reputational 

impact 
 Impact of supplier 

issues on service 
delivery 

 Projects not 
delivered to time 
and/or budget 

 Key service 
priorities not 
delivered due to 
contract failure 
e.g. waste, street 
cleansing, litter 
enforcement, 
leisure, theatre 

 Possible litigation 
for contract failure 

 H&S implications 
 Legislative 

breaches 
 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity arrangements for 

loss of supplier 
 Contract register actively managed  
 Signed contracts in place and 

appropriately filed 
 Guidance on contract waivers 
 Procurement guidance and Contract 

Standing Orders promoted 
 Financial checks on contractors 
 Inflation provision within budget 
 Seeking parent company guarantees 

where appropriate 
 Financial reserve provision 

 
Target Controls: 

 Business continuity plans for major 
contractors to be reviewed (target 
date: ongoing) 

 Contract management training for 
relevant staff (target date: TBC) 

 Contract Management Group being set 
up to oversee progress of key contracts 
and new contracts (target date: April 
2023) 

 
  x   

           
       

       
        

 
 x    

          
       

       
        

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

 Work closely with major contractors 
(target date: ongoing) 

 

 Source of assurance: recent audit of contract waivers received ‘Reasonable’ assurance; contract management audit in 20/21 received ‘Limited’ assurance, 
the action plan agreed as part of the audit is being implemented 

  

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk IT infrastructure Risk Ref SR09 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Failure to adequately invest  in IT systems and IT infrastructure  Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Failure to 
procure/develop IT 
solutions 

 Lack of capacity and 
skilled professionals 
to develop IT 
infrastructure and 
solutions 

 Failure to identify 
where IT could 
improve service 
delivery 

 Failure to 
implement robust IT 
security measures 

 Unable to 
effectively deliver 
services 

 Unable to benefit 
from service 
efficiencies e.g. 
channel shift, 
digital services 

 Compromise to 
network and 
systems 

 Lack of confidence 
in systems 

 Inefficiency 

 
       

          
      x 

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Robust budget provision for IT 
 Regular patching and upgrades 
 Network security measures e.g. firewall 
 Experienced IT staff 
 IT & Transformation Governance Board 
 Increased use of Cloud based solutions 
 Active management of the team 

resource and succession planning 
 
Target Controls: 

 IT Strategy to be updated (target date: 
end of April 2023) 

 IT Security Policy and other relevant 
policies to be updated (target date: TBC) 

 IT Disaster Recovery Plan to be put in 
place and regularly tested (target date: 
Q3 2023) 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    X   

       
        

 

Source of assurance: recent audit report on IT Disaster Recover Arrangements gave limited assurance. Plan to be put in place to implement the actions 
identified. IT Governance audit gave limited assurance, actions being implemented.  

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Building Maintenance Risk Ref SR10 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Failure to address compliance issues, lack of detailed maintenance plan leading to 

deteriorating stock 
Risk Owner Caroline Hicks 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Lack, or poorly 
managed Asset  
maintenance plan 

 Lack of budget to 
carry out required 
works 

 Lack of capacity to 
appropriately 
manage and 
maintain the 
Council’s assets 

 Financial impact – 
increased cost of 
reactive repairs 
etc. 

 Deteriorating 
stock 

 H&S and 
Compliance issues 

 Possible litigation 
and/or fines 

 Reputational 
damage if 
properties fall into 
disrepair 

 Increased voids 
and loss of rental 
income 
 

 
    x   

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Property Services Team with required 

skills 
 Housing Revenue maintenance 

programme 
 Garage maintenance contract 
 Funding for maintenance and 

improvements within Capital & Revenue 
programmes 

 Relevant clauses in leases regarding 
responsibility for repairs and H&S 

 Facilities management software in place 
to record compliance checks 
 
Target Controls: 

 Asset Management Action Plan to be 
implemented(target date: TBC) 

 Compliance checks to be carried out on 
a regular basis and documented ( target 
date: ongoing) 

 Condition surveys to be documented 
(target date: TBC) 
 
 

 
   x    

          
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

Source of assurance: relevant certificates for gas checks, fire safety inspections etc.  

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Housing Demand & Homelessness Risk Ref SR11 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Increased number of rough sleepers and homelessness approaches; failure to meet 

statutory housing duty 
Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Increase in 
population without 
sufficient housing 
supply 

 Lack of available 
and affordable 
private rented 
accommodation 
within the Borough 

 Rising housing costs 
 Increased 

placements from 
London Boroughs 

 Pressure on housing 
stock from 
increased number 
of migrants 

 Dartford’s 
geography in 
relation to London 

 Impact of 
Government 
schemes 

 Cost of living crisis 
and increased 
interest rates 

 Increased number 
of rough sleepers 

 Increased number 
of housing 
approaches 

 Failure to fulfil 
statutory housing 
obligations 

 Impact on life 
chances of those 
sleeping rough or 
in temporary 
accommodation 

 Increased cost of 
use of temporary 
accommodation 

 Legal challenge 
due to provision of 
unsuitable housing 

 Increase in 
placements 
outside of the 
Borough 

 
       

       x   
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Housing Options advice 
 Housing Hub providing advice and 

support 
 Increased stock through New Build 

programme 
 Close working with private sector 

landlords 
 Reserve created to support the 

acquisition/new build of more 
temporary accommodation units 
 
Target Controls: 

 Homelessness Strategy to be refreshed 
(target date: September 2023) 
 

 
       

       x   
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Source of assurance: audits of housing allocations and new build capital programme in 20/21 received ‘Substantial’ assurance; audit of temporary 
accommodation in 21/22 received ‘Reasonable’ assurance  

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Safeguarding Risk Ref SR12 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Failure to follow statutory safeguarding responsibilities Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Poorly managed 
Safeguarding 
strategy polices and 
processes 

 Failure to make a 
referral for a 
vulnerable child or 
adult to the 
appropriate agency 

 Lack of awareness 
of responsibilities 
 

 Avoidable harm 
caused to 
vulnerable adult 
or child 

 Child exploitation, 
domestic abuse, 
radicalisation, 
modern day 
slavery 

 Failure to 
safeguard may 
lead to 
prosecution 

 Significant 
reputational 
damage 

 Staff morale 
 Legislative issues 

 
     x  

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Regular updates of Safeguarding Policy 
 Compulsory Safeguarding training for 

staff  
 Safeguarding Officer Lead at Director 

level 
 Safeguarding Group 
 Sharing of minutes from the 

Safeguarding Group at Management 
Team 

 Promotion of safeguarding bulletins 
 Good relationship with KCC & Kent 

Safeguarding Board 
 Basic DBS checks undertaken for all staff 

with regular contact with vulnerable 
adults and children  - checks to be 
extended to all staff who may come into 
contact with vulnerable adults and 
children  

 Basic DBS checks undertaken for all new 
staff including agency staff 

 Extensive Staff training regime 
 KMSAB peer review of DBC P&Ps 

 
Target Controls: 

 Ongoing safeguarding training for 
members (target date: ongoing) 

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

 Regular Audits (target date: ongoing) 
 Leadership Team oversight (target date: 

ongoing) 
 

 

Source of assurance: recent audit report gave ‘Limited’ assurance for safeguarding but relevant actions identified are being implemented 

  

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Climate Change Risk Ref SR13 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Inability to meet the requirements of the Government’s climate change agenda Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

R 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Insufficient funding 
to implement 
measures to reduce 
carbon footprint 

 Insufficient capacity 
or specialised 
knowledge 

  
 

 Failure to reduce 
carbon emissions 

 Failure to retrofit 
Council buildings 
and housing stock 

 Impact on 
environment 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Energy inefficient 
building 

 Increase energy 
costs 

 External criticism 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Consideration of environmental impacts 

on all committee forms and as part of 
the procurement process 

 Monitoring of carbon emissions 
 Programme of planting of new trees to 

improve biodiversity 
 Climate Team now in place and actively 

investigating opportunities 
 Climate Change now a “golden thread” 

though all decision making processes 
 
Target Controls: 

 Development of Climate Change Policy 
and action plan (target date: Summer 
2023) 

 Investigating funding opportunities to 
decarbonise or retrofit Council buildings 
(target date: ongoing) 

 Training on climate change for Members 
(target date: by end of 2023) 

 Roll-out of Carbon Literacy Programme 
for senior managers (target date: by end 
of 2023) 
 

 

 
    x   

          
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Fraud & Corruption Risk Ref SR14 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Not taking steps to minimise the risk of fraud occurring Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Staff shortages 
resulting in less 
vigilance 

 Insufficient internal 
controls 

 Lack of awareness 
by staff 

 Financial pressures 
lead to more fraud 
opportunists 

 

 Financial loss 
 Reputational 

damage 
 Staff morale 
 Possible police 

investigation/legal 
action 

 Reduction in 
housing stock due 
to RTB fraud 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Counter Fraud Team 
 Counter-Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
 Whistleblowing Policy 
 Fraud awareness to staff and promotion 

of an anti-fraud culture 
 Strong Internal Audit function 
 Reporting of fraud to Audit Board 
 National Fraud Initiative exercise carried 

out annually 
 Separation of duties 
 Checks on suppliers 
 Basic security checks on all new staff and 

agency staff 

 
       

          
   x    

       
        

 
       

          
  x     

       
        

 

  

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Health & Safety Risk Ref SR15 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Risk of health & safety breach Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Lack of health & 
safety guidance and 
training 

 Ineffective health & 
safety controls 

 Lack of health & 
safety risk 
assessments 

 Lack of capacity & 
skills around health 
& safety 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Manslaughter 
charges 

 Health & Safety 
Executive 
inspection & fines 

 Increased 
workplace 
accidents or near 
misses 

 More staff 
absences 

 Non-compliance 
with statutory and 
legislative  
requirements 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Health & Safety Policy rolled out to 

staff 
 Corporate Wellbeing & Health & Safety 

Group 
 Health & safety risk assessments 
 Mandatory health & safety training for 

all staff 
 Accident reporting 
 Regular health & safety walkabouts of 

the Civic Centre 
 Annual surveys of lifts, PAT testing etc. 
 Regular fire evacuation testing 
 Trained fire wardens and first aiders 
 Staff Training 
 Property planned maintenance 

programme in place 
 Continue regular health & safety 

checks and inspections 
 Ensure compliance with H&S Policy 

 
Target Controls: 
 Protocol for incidents in reception 

(target date: end of April 2023) 
 
 

 
       

   x       
       

       
        

 
       

   X       
       

       
        

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Source of assurance: H&S certificates 

Risk Cost of Living Crisis Risk Ref SR16 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Increase in service demand and/or cost due to the cost of living crisis Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 International 
conflicts 

 Rising inflation 
 Increased costs of 

fuel due to 
Ukrainian conflict 

 Residents unable 
to pay CT 

 Council tenants 
unable to pay 
rents 

 Increase in 
homelessness 

 More residents in 
fuel and food 
poverty 

 More use of food 
banks 

 Increased contract 
costs for those 
contracts linked to 
CPI 

 Negative impact 
on staff wellbeing 
due to financial 
stress 

 Strike action by 
some 
organisations 

 Reduced use by 
customers of paid 

 
       

       X   
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 CT £150 rebates rolled out to eligible 

residents 
 Household Support Grant 
- Support for pensioners in receipt of 

CTR and/or HB and support for other 
vulnerable residents 

 Community Fund – support with school 
uniforms and free school meal 
vouchers; grants to food banks; 
supporting warm hubs; Working 
Households Fund; free activities for 
low income families in school holidays; 
looking at what other support may be 
required for residents 

 Close working with CAB and HLC 
 Inflation provision and reserves for 

contract increases 
 Financial wellbeing package rolled out 

to staff  
 Mid year pay award to staff to reflect 

cost of living increase 
 Work with those contractors most 

impacted by increased costs to ensure 

 
       

          
    X   

       
        

 
       

         
    X   

       
        P

age 68
A

genda Item
 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

for Council 
services (e.g. bulky 
waste) resulting in 
reduced income 
and increased 
issues (e.g. 
increased 
flytipping) 

 Greater efforts to 
economise by 
residents result in 
increased 
workloads and 
costs (e.g.tenants 
not heating homes 
leading to 
condensation 
issues, health 
issues; more 
abandoned dogs 
that the Council 
needs to take to 
kennels etc) 

 Possible civic 
unrest 

contracts can continue e.g. Urbaser 
and Places Leisure 

 
 

 

  

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

Risk Elections 2023 Risk Ref SR17 Review Date 01.03.2023 
Risk Description Impact of the Election Act 2022 on Registration and delivery of Local Elections in 

May 2023 
Risk Owner ERO – Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Introduction 
within the Act of 
voter ID and 
changes to postal 
votes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 The Returning Officer will 
be unable to implement the 
Elections Act 2022 and any 
elections taking place might 
therefore be undermined. 

 The Returning Officer may 
struggle to deliver the 
elections they have 
personal responsibility for. 

 The democratic legitimacy 
of the Council might be 
undermined. 

 Voter ID may not be 
successfully introduced. 

 Some voters may be dis-
enfranchised leading to a 
lack of confidence in the 
Election results. 

 Additional work pressures 
at key stages in the election 
timetable due to late 
applications of Voter 
Identification Certififcates 

 The risk of challenge by 
petition after the election 
will be higher. 

 
   x   X 
          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 A One Council approach is 

being taken in order that the 
wider Council can provide 
necessary support. 

 Government portal now live 
for Voter Authority 
Certificates 

 The changes to the Postal 
Votes have been delayed by 
Central Government. 

 Guidance on new measures 
now available and webinars  
being attended to ensure staff 
are familiar with the changes 

 Detailed election plan in place   
  Funding for implementation 

has been provided by 
Government although there 
will be further additional 
expenditure incurred to 
ensure the new measures are 
successfully implemented.  

 A national communication 
campaign has been launched 
on voter ID. The Council is 

WAS 
      x 
          
       

       
        

 
NOW 

   x    

          
       

       
        

 
  X     

          
       

       
        

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

 Certain groups are more 
likely to be disadvantaged 
than others, resulting in 
increased inequalities. 

 Polling staff will have 
greater responsibilities, 
including challenging voters 
about their ID and including 
and excluding the postal 
votes.  This may result in 
recruitment issues for 
polling station staff. 

 Postal votes might be 
rejected incorrectly due to 
a lack of communication or 
understanding. 
 

supplementing this with its 
own communication 
campaign. This includes 
posters in prominent places, 
leaflets which will also be 
included with the CT bills, 
targeted campaign with  
harder to reach groups. 

 Polling stations and 
accessibility equipment have 
been reviewed   

 Job roles for election staff 
have been updated and roles 
have been appointed to. Fees 
have been agreed which 
reflect the additional 
requirements of the roles 

 Interim Electoral Services 
Manager has been appointed 
and temporary P/T Electoral 
Participation Officer is in post 
 
Target Controls: 

 Identify reserve list of polling 
staff due to expected last 
minute drop-outs (target 
date: end of March 2023) 

 Additional training to be 
provided to polling staff 
(target date: April 2023) 

 Identify resourcing for the 
processing of Voter 
Identification Certificates 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9



 Strategic Risk Register – March 2023   
       Appendix C

(target date: end of March 
2023) 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9



AUDIT BOARD 
22 March 2023 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 2023 
 
 

1.  Summary 
 
1. To consider the review of the Code of Corporate Governance and to 

recommend accordingly. 
 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

2.1  That, subject to comments by the Board, the Code of Corporate Governance 
2023, at Appendix A to the report, be adopted.  

 
 

3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right 
things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, 
honest and accountable manner. It comprises the systems and 
processes, and cultures and values, by which such the Council is 
directed and controlled and through which it accounts to, engages 
with, and leads its communities.  

 
3.2. The Council strives to meet the highest standards of corporate 

governance to help ensure it meets its objectives. Members and 
officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for 
the governance of the Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the 
resources at its disposal.  

 
3.3. All local authorities were strongly recommended to adopt a Code of 

Corporate Governance (“the Code”) by 31 March 2002. The General 
Assembly of the Council at its meeting on 18 March 2002 (Min. no. 
146) approved the Code. This Code was based on a CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework set in 2001.  

 
3.4. The CIPFA/SOLOACE framework was subsequently supplemented 

by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister and CIPFA publication 
entitled “The Good Governance Standard for Public Services”. The 
adopted Code was reviewed in April 2008 and agreed by Cabinet 
(Min. No. 215). 

 
3.5. In April 2016, CIPFA published “Delivering Good Governance” which 

reviewed the previous guidance. Seven core principles identified by 
the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector 
(CIPFA/IFAC 2014) were incorporated. 

 
3.6. The seven core principles are: 
 

Page 73 Agenda Item 10



AUDIT BOARD 
22 March 2023 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 

C. Defining outcome in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits  

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes 

E. Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it   

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management  

G. Implementing good practices in transparency reporting, and 
audit to deliver effective accountability.  

 
3.7.  The current Code incorporated these principles and was agreed by 

 Cabinet on the 26 Jan 2017 [Min 106]. 
 
3.8. It was identified in the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

2021/22 that the Code of Corporate Governance had not been reviewed 
for some years and as such, an additional review has taken place.  

 
3.9. The review has not highlighted any significant changes and underlying 

guidance has not changed.  
 
3.10. Minor amendments have been made where the Code, (Appendix A to 

the report), references dates and positions in the Council. It is also 
important that Members refresh themselves of the Code and discuss any 
changes they would recommend before this version of the Code is 
formally adopted.  

 
3. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

A sound system of corporate governance is critical to the Council 
achieving its aims and objectives. 

 
4. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 
Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications 
 

The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the 
principles of good governance and what 
arrangements the Council  has in place to ensure 
that it conducts its business in accordance with 
the law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for 
and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. 

Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

None 

Page 74Agenda Item 10



AUDIT BOARD 
22 March 2023 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment It is essential that the Council’s governance 
framework shows that the arrangements 
continue to be fit for purpose ensuring that 
reasonable assurance can be given that the 
framework is operating adequately in practice. 

 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Code of Corporate Governance 2023 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government 2016 
Edition Framework and 
Guidance Notes 

 Tim Sams 
(01322) 343148 

Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

Page 75 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Appendix A  

 

Dartford Borough Council  
Code of Corporate Governance  
2023 
 

Page 77 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

1. Introduction  
This document sets out how Dartford Borough Council (the Council) intends to apply the 
principles of corporate governance in the way the Council operates and conducts business. It 
has been developed in accordance with the principles outlined in the framework and guidance 
notes for CIPFA/SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government” (2016).  
 
The Council is required to review existing governance arrangements, develop and maintain 
an up to date local Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) (including arrangements for 
ensuring ongoing effectiveness), and to prepare an Annual Governance Statement (in order 
to report publicly on its compliance with the Code and the monitoring of effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements).  
 

Page 78Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

2. What is Governance?  
Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, 
for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. It comprises 
the systems and processes, and cultures and values, by which such bodies are directed and 
controlled and through which they account to, engage with, where appropriate, and lead their 
communities.  
 
Good governance enables the Council to define and pursue its vision more effectively. It leads 
to improvements in management, performance, stewardship of public money and public 
engagement and outcomes for individuals and the community. It ensures that appropriate 
mechanisms for control are in place and that risks and opportunities are managed effectively.  
 
 

Page 79 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

3. Core Principles of Good Governance  
The following core principles have been taken from the International Framework; Good 
Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC 2014); which notes that principles A and B 
“permeate” implementation of principles C-G below.  
 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting rule of law.  

 
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.  
 
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits.  
 
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes.  
 
E. Development the Partnership’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it.  
 
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management.  
 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability.  
 

Page 80Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

The diagram below shows how the principles relate to each other.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

4. Applying the Principles of Good Governance  
Each of the seven core principles above has a number of sub principles, which in turn, 
translate into a range of specific behaviours and actions that apply across the various  
aspects of the Council’s functions that demonstrate good governance.  
 
Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law 
 
Sub-principle: Behaving with integrity  

 
Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture 
where acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated 
thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation  
 
Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating 
principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that they are 
communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles 
of Public Life (the Nolan Principles)  
 
Leading by example and using these standard operating principles or values 
as a framework for decision making and other actions  
 
Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating 
principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which are 
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively  
 

 
 
Sub-principle: Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values  

 
Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical 
standards and performance  
 
Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they 
permeate all aspects of the organisation’s culture and operation  
 
Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place 
emphasis on agreed ethical values  
 
Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation 
are required to act with integrity and in compliance with high ethical 
standards expected by the organisation  
 

 
  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 82Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Sub-principle: Respecting the rule of law  
 
Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule 
of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations  
 
Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post 
holders and members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance 
with legislative and regulatory requirements  
 
Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of 
citizens, communities and other stakeholders  
 
Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively  
 
Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively  
 

 
Principle B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  
 
Sub-principle: Openness  
 

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 
communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness  
 
Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, 
forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that 
is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 
confidential should be provided  
 
Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 
and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 
rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact 
and consequences of those decisions are clear  
 
Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the 
most appropriate and effective interventions/ courses of action  
 
Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders  
 
Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the 
purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder 
relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 
sustainably  
 
Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be 
used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively  
 
Ensuring that partnerships are based on:     
 trust  
 a shared commitment to change  
 a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners  
 and that the added value of partnership working is explicit  

 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 83 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Sub-principle: Engaging stakeholders effectively, including individual citizens and 
service users  

 
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will 
meaningfully consult with or involve individual citizens, service users and 
other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing 
towards the achievement of intended outcomes.  
 
Ensuring that communication methods are effective and that members and 
officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement  
 
Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of 
communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different 
backgrounds including reference to future needs  
 
Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how 
their views have been taken into account  
 
Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other 
stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity  
 
Taking account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and 
service users  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Principle C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits  
 
Sub-principle: Defining outcomes  

 
Having a clear vision which is an agreed formal statement of the 
organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate 
performance indicators, which provides the basis for the organisation’s 
overall strategy, planning and other decisions  

 
Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including 
citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a 
year or longer  
 
Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources 
that will be available  
 
Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes  
 
Managing service users expectations effectively with regard to determining 
priorities and making the best use of the resources available  

 
  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 84Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Sub-principle: Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits  
Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and 
environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions 
about service provision  
 
Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of 
risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the 
organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the 
political cycle or financial constraints  
 
Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting 
interests between achieving the various economic, social and 
environmental benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to 
ensure appropriate trade-offs  
 

Ensuring fair access to services  
 

 

 
Principle D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes  
 
Sub-principle: Determining interventions  

 
Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 
variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and 
including the risks associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 
value is achieved however services are provided  
 
Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 
decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 
required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources 
available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future 
impacts  
 

  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 85 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Sub-principle: Planning interventions  
 
Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover 
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets  
 
Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how 
services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered  
 
Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working 
collaboratively including shared risks  
 
Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for 
delivering outputs can be adapted to changing circumstances  
 
Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the 
planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and 
projects is to be measured  
 
Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review 
service quality regularly  
 
Preparing budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies 
and the medium term financial plan  
 
Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic 
estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a 
sustainable funding strategy  
 

  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 86Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Sub-principle: Optimising achievement of intended outcomes  
 
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 
service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints  
 
Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full 
cost of operations over the medium and longer term  
 
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 
decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 
external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order for 
outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage  
 
Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 
commissioning. The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this 
is “the additional benefit to the community...over and above the direct 
purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”  
 

 
Principle E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it  
 
Sub-principle: Developing the entity’s capacity  
 

 
Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to 
ensure their continuing effectiveness  
Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such 
as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how resources are 
allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently  
 
Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where 
added value can be achieved  
Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the 
strategic allocation of resources  
 

  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 87 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals  
 
Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 
negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the 
relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained  
 
Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are 
delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the 
governing body  
 
Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and 
distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the chief executive 
leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and 
other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for 
each other’s authority 
 
Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve 
effective leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully 
to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and 
environmental changes and risks by:  
 

 ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction 
tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development 
matching individual and organisational requirements is available and 
encouraged ensuring members and officers have the appropriate 
skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and 
responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their 
knowledge on a continuing basis. 

 
 ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development 

through shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance 
weaknesses both internal and external  

 
Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation  
 
Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring 
leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections  
 
Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take 
account of training or development needs  
 

Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the 
workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental 
wellbeing 

 
  

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 88Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Principle F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management  
 
Sub-principle: Managing risk  
 

 
Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and 
must be considered in all aspects of decision making  
 
Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and 
ensuring that they are working effectively  
 
Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly 
allocated  
 

Managing performance  
 

 
Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification, 
execution and independent post implementation review 
 
Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice 
pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s 
financial, social and environmental position and outlook  
 
Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which 
provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives 
before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the 
organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is 
responsible  
 
Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 
negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the 
relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained  
 
Providing members and senior management with regular reports on 
service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement  
 
Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as 
budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 89 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

 
 
 
 
 
Robust internal control  
 
Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with 
achieving objectives  
 
Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control on a 
regular basis  
 
Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in 
place  
 
Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided 
by the internal auditor  
 
Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ function, which is 
independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body: 
provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements 
for managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment that its 
recommendations are listened to and acted upon  
 

 
Managing data 

 
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, 
storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard 
personal data. 
 
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively 
when sharing data with other bodies. 
 
Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in 
decision making and performance monitoring. 
 
 

Strong public financial management  
 
Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of 
outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance  
 
 
Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels 
of planning and control, including management of financial risks and 
controls 
 
 

 
 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 90Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

Principle G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective accountability  
 
Sub-principle: Implementing good practice in transparency  

 
Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in 
a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended 
audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate  
 
Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to 
satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being 
too onerous to provide and for users to understand  
 
 

Implementing good practices in reporting  
 
Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and 
stewardship of resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable 
way  
Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported  
 
Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the 
principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing 
the results on this assessment, including an action plan for improvement 
and evidence to demonstrate good governance (the annual governance 
statement)  
 
Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared 
service organisations as appropriate  
 
Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 
statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements 
allow for comparison with other, similar organisations  
 

Assurance and effective accountability  
 
Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external 
audit are acted upon  
 
Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members 
is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance arrangements 
and that recommendations are acted upon  
 
Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies 
and implementing recommendations  
 
Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through 
third parties and that this is evidenced in the annual governance statement  
 
Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability 
are clear and the need for wider public accountability has been recognised 
and met 
 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Behaviours 
and actions 
that 
demonstrate 
good 
governance 
in practice 

Page 91 Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

5. Annual Review and Reporting  
 
5.1 Each year the Council will carry out a review of governance arrangements to ensure 
compliance with this Code in accordance with CIPFA/SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government” (2016) Framework. The purpose of the review will be to provide 
assurance that governance arrangements are adequate, operating effectively and to identify 
action for improvement. 
 
5.2 The outcome of the review is factored into the Governance Statement prepared on behalf 
of the Leader of the Council and Leadership Team and submitted to the Audit Board for 
consideration and review.  
 
5.3 The preparation and publication of the Governance Statement will meet the statutory 
requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which requires authorities to 
“conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control” 
and to “prepare an annual governance statement”. As such, the Governance Statement will 
be prepared in accordance with the timetable in participation of financial statements in 
accordance with the Audit and Accounts Regulations 2015.  

Page 92Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2023
	Minutes

	6 Internal Audit Update Report (March 2023)
	Appendix A Internal Audit Update Report - March 2023
	Introduction
	Internal Audit Progress Update

	Internal Audit Outcomes
	Internal Audit Performance
	Conclusion
	Jennifer Warrillow
	Audit Manager
	Annex A – Key Performance Indicators for Q3 (October - December)
	Annex B - Definitions of Assurance ratings:


	7 Internal Audit Plan 2023/24
	Appendix A - 2023-24 Audit Plan
	Internal Audit Plan
	2023/24
	22 March 2023
	Dartford Borough Council
	Introduction
	Resources
	Assurance Work


	8 Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix A Internal Audit Charter 2023

	9 Strategic Risk Register Update - March 2023
	SRR APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX
	APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX

	SRR APPENDIX  B
	APPENDIX  B – LIKELIHOOD SCALES

	Appendix C Risk register updated February 2023

	10 Dartford Borough Council - Code of Corporate Governance
	3.1.	Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. It comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values, by which such the Council is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to, engages with, and leads its communities.
	3.2.	The Council strives to meet the highest standards of corporate governance to help ensure it meets its objectives. Members and officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.
	3.3.	All local authorities were strongly recommended to adopt a Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) by 31 March 2002. The General Assembly of the Council at its meeting on 18 March 2002 (Min. no. 146) approved the Code. This Code was based on a CIPFA/SOLACE framework set in 2001.
	3.4.	The CIPFA/SOLOACE framework was subsequently supplemented by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister and CIPFA publication entitled “The Good Governance Standard for Public Services”. The adopted Code was reviewed in April 2008 and agreed by Cabinet (Min. No. 215).
	3.5.	In April 2016, CIPFA published “Delivering Good Governance” which reviewed the previous guidance. Seven core principles identified by the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC 2014) were incorporated.
	3.6.	The seven core principles are:
	A.	Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting rule of law
	B.	Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
	C.	Defining outcome in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits
	D.	Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
	E.	Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
	F.	Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
	G.	Implementing good practices in transparency reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability.
	3.7.	The current Code incorporated these principles and was agreed by 	Cabinet on the 26 Jan 2017 [Min 106].
	3.8.	It was identified in the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 2021/22 that the Code of Corporate Governance had not been reviewed for some years and as such, an additional review has taken place.
	3.9.	The review has not highlighted any significant changes and underlying guidance has not changed.
	3.10.	Minor amendments have been made where the Code, (Appendix A to the report), references dates and positions in the Council. It is also important that Members refresh themselves of the Code and discuss any changes they would recommend before this version of the Code is formally adopted.
	Appendix A DBC CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
	Dartford Borough Council
	Code of Corporate Governance
	2023
	1. Introduction
	2. What is Governance?
	3. Core Principles of Good Governance
	4. Applying the Principles of Good Governance
	Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
	Sub-principle: Behaving with integrity
	Sub-principle: Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values
	Sub-principle: Respecting the rule of law

	Principle B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
	Sub-principle: Openness
	Sub-principle: Engaging stakeholders effectively, including individual citizens and service users

	Principle C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits
	Sub-principle: Defining outcomes
	Sub-principle: Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

	Principle D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
	Sub-principle: Determining interventions
	Sub-principle: Planning interventions
	Sub-principle: Optimising achievement of intended outcomes

	Principle E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
	Sub-principle: Developing the entity’s capacity
	Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

	Principle F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
	Sub-principle: Managing risk
	Managing performance
	Managing data
	Strong public financial management

	Principle G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
	Sub-principle: Implementing good practice in transparency
	Implementing good practices in reporting
	Assurance and effective accountability


	5. Annual Review and Reporting




